


March 30, 2006

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS:

The past year was remarkable for the number of major goals achieved by
your Company, which culminated in a successful Initial Public Offering and listing
of the Company’s shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange on January 10, 2006. As a
consequence, the Company made the decision to proceed with the construction of the Orca
Quarry and the associated Richmond Terminal.

Since inception, our business plan has been dedicated to achieving a total solution for the
supply of high quality construction aggregates to the west coast of the United States from
mineral resources located on Vancouver Island, British Columbia. During 2005, we completed
the execution of our threefold strategy of permitting and developing strategically located,
cost-competitive resources; negotiating competitive bulk shipping arrangements; and
securing our first dockside terminal to service target markets in California. Our imminent
ability to produce, ship, and discharge construction aggregates has enabled us to secure a
long-term aggregates supply agreement with a well-established ready-mix concrete
customer located in the San Francisco Bay area. This agreement represents the validation of
our business plan and will be the keystone to building up sales volumes during the course of
2007 and beyond.

During the past year, we received the essential provincial and federal permits for the Orca
Quarry and executed a 50-year lease with the landowner, Western Forest Products Inc. We
were granted a licence of occupation for the foreshore from the Province, which will be
converted into a long-term lease in the near future. The feasibility study of the Orca Quarry,
which included the Richmond Terminal, was completed by AMEC Americas Limited and
confirmed that the project is economically robust. 

We are currently working on initiatives to outperform projected economic returns,
principally through a redesign of the Richmond Terminal that has the potential to materially
reduce the previously estimated capital cost. We are also working diligently with our
partners, the Hupacasath and Ucluelet First Nations, to finalize the terms of the advances
we shall make to them to fund their share of the Richmond Terminal construction costs. We
expect the final terms to be an improvement on those incorporated in the feasibility study.
We will also be striving to secure long-term, low-cost bank debt to refinance our existing
bridge debt facility. Beyond this, the Company will endeavour to accelerate the production
and sales ramp-up schedule and to gain access to wider markets.

We have maintained our strong working relationships with the Kwakiutl First Nation with
whom we have signed an Impact and Benefits Agreement, and the Namgis First Nation, our
partner in the Orca Quarry. We are now working closely with them on the implementation of
employment and training programs for their members.

During the year we executed a long-term contract of affreightment with CSL International
Inc., the operator of the largest fleet of self-unloading vessels in the world. This shipping

Polaris Annual Report 2005 1
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VANCOUVER

SAN FRANCISCO2005 HIGHLIGHTS

Financing

· Executed an $80 million IPO equity financing

· Arranged a US$47 million bridge loan facility 

Orca Sand & Gravel Project

· Entered into an impact and benefits agreement with the Kwakiutl First Nation

· Formed a partnership with the Namgis First Nation

· Executed a 50-year lease agreement with Western Forest Products Inc.

· Secured a licence of occupation for the shiploader

· Obtained environmental, mine, navigable waters protection, and fisheries permits

· Completed a NI 43-101 compliant feasibility study

· Made a construction decision

Terminals, Shipping & Marketing

· Negotiated a berthing agreement for the Richmond Terminal

· Made a construction decision for the Richmond Terminal 

· Executed a 10-year contract of affreightment with CSL International Inc.

· Executed a long-term construction aggregates supply agreement

Eagle Rock Quarry 

· Negotiated and executed a 50-year Crown lease

EAGLE ROCK QUARRY

ORCA QUARRY



are experiencing similar supply deficiencies and we expect, over time, that they will offer
market opportunities for the Company’s high quality, competitive materials.

The IPO raised gross proceeds of approximately $80 million, and Polaris arranged a bridge
loan facility of US$47 million, which it subsequently
elected to reduce to US$31 million. As a result, in
January 2006, the Company made a decision to
proceed with the construction of the Orca Quarry
and the Richmond Terminal.

Several significant construction contracts have been
executed subsequent to the year end, including for the processing plant, the ship loader and
associated piling, and mobile equipment. We expect to commence production in December
2006 and begin shipments to San Francisco Bay during the first quarter of 2007.

The proposed Eagle Rock Quarry is fully permitted and we have been granted tenure over
this long-term deposit. While a final feasibility study will not be completed until we have
confirmation of potential markets for its crushed rock products, we continue to be confident
that this very large, high quality resource will be developed within the foreseeable future.

2005 has been an excellent year for Polaris. With the convergence of tenure, permits and
financing for the Orca Quarry and the Richmond Terminal, the mandate we have long sought
has been granted to us by all levels of government, the residents of northern Vancouver
Island and our shareholders. We are now ready to advance to the next phase of your
Company’s development.

We look forward to 2006 with optimism, confident that while we still have challenges in
front of us, we have all the essential elements in place to achieve our ultimate objective of
establishing your Company as a significant and successful producer of building materials.

It has been a rewarding year and I would like to thank my management colleagues for their
hard work and dedication, and my fellow Directors for their support. I would also like to
thank our First Nation partners and our shareholders for believing in our team and in Polaris.

Finally, I am pleased to report that Lisa Dea, Polaris' Controller, has been appointed as our
new Vice President, Finance & Chief Financial Officer, effective May 1st, 2006, in
anticipation of the upcoming retirement of Harry Sutherland, our current CFO. Harry will
continue to serve as a director of Polaris’ principal operating subsidiaries and as a consultant
to the Company. On behalf of the Board of Directors, management and staff, I thank him for
his exceptional contribution to the Company and wish him all the very best in his
retirement.

Yours sincerely,

Marco Romero
President & Chief Executive Officer

contract, in conjunction with barging arrangements available to the Company in San
Francisco Bay, provides us with a reliable and cost-effective marine transportation solution.

The Company has secured the Richmond Terminal under a 40-year lease with Levin
Enterprises, Inc., and has vessel berthing rights under a corresponding 30-year berthing
agreement with Pacific Energy Ltd. We are also making solid progress toward gaining access
to a second terminal location in San Francisco Bay, and continue to seek additional terminals
in southern California.

Polaris commissioned an independent market survey in 2001 that projected a growing local
supply deficit of construction aggregates in the major coastal cities of California. Since
then, average selling prices have increased and various indigenous supply sources have been
exhausted. During 2005, the market survey was updated, the deficit projections revalidated,
and further price increases predicted. In northern California, the initial market area
targeted by Polaris, there is an increasing shortage of construction aggregate, particularly
natural sand for ready-mix concrete. In southern California, increasing volumes of
construction aggregates are being transported, mainly by road, from sources located long
distances from the centres of demand.

Marine aggregates transported in bulk by
large self-discharging vessels offer a
competitive alternative to other long-hauled
materials and will increasingly play an
important part in meeting the overall
demand for these basic building and
construction products.

In California, the State’s population is
predicted to increase from its present level
of 37 million to 46 million by 2025. In
addition, the State recognizes that
“infrastructure investments of a half-
century ago are showing their age and
straining to support a vibrant economy and
a population much larger than they were
designed to accommodate”. 

As a consequence, California Governor Arnold Schwarzenegger has recently proposed a
comprehensive strategic growth plan, which is the first installment in a twenty-year
investment designed to ensure California’s quality of life and to promote continued
economic growth. Phase one of the strategic growth plan incorporates $222 billion in
infrastructure investments over the next ten years. 

This essential attention to improving State infrastructure, coupled with the “Safe,
Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act” (SAFETEA) approved by the
United States Congress in 2005, is expected to enhance the demand for Polaris’ materials in
2007 and beyond.

Although the State of California remains the primary focus for Polaris, other coastal cities
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Quarry, a very large, high quality granite resource located near Port Alberni, which will be
developed as soon as markets for its crushed rock products are secured.

In addition to its aggregates properties, Polaris owns a 70% interest in the rights to construct
and operate a marine receiving and discharge terminal in the Port of Richmond, San
Francisco Bay (the Richmond Terminal). Polaris has also executed a long-term freight
contract that is the key to the cost-effective bulk-shipping of construction aggregates to

California. In addition, the Company has
secured a long-term supply agreement to
deliver construction aggregates from the Orca
Quarry to a ready-mix concrete customer in the
San Francisco Bay area.

Construction of the Orca
Quarry began in March 2006
and the Richmond Terminal is
scheduled to begin in the
second quarter of 2006, with
initial shipments of aggregates
to San Francisco Bay expected in the first
quarter of 2007. 

Polaris’ directors and officers are experienced mineral resource industry executives who
have been responsible for the development and management of international mining and
quarrying operations, including construction aggregates production and marketing in North
America. They are current or former senior officers and directors of North American public
corporations and have considerable experience in major capital markets around the world.

FINANCING

Initial Public Offering

On December 22nd, 2005, Polaris filed the final prospectus for its IPO and completed the
transition from a private company to a reporting issuer. The prospectus qualified the
distribution of 13,542,000 common shares at a price of $4.80 per common share pursuant to
an agency agreement between the Company and GMP Securities L.P., Canaccord Capital
Corporation, Dundee Securities Corporation, Orion Securities Inc., TD Securities Inc., and
Wellington West Capital Markets Inc. (the Agents). The Company also granted the Agents an
option to purchase up to 6,250,000 common shares at $4.80 per common share until the
closing of the offering. In addition, the Company granted the Agents an over–allotment
option to purchase up to 1,875,000 common shares at $4.80 per common shares exercisable
for a period of 30 days from the date of closing of the offering. The Agents were granted a
fee of 6% (3% for certain purchasers) of the gross value of common shares sold.

The offering closed on January 10, 2006, on which date Polaris was listed for trading on the
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CORPORATE PROFILE

Polaris Minerals Corporation (Polaris or the Company) is a publicly traded company listed on
the Toronto Stock Exchange (TSX: PLS) and based in Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada.
The Company commenced business in June 2000 and since then has exclusively focused on
supplying construction aggregates from its two properties located on tidewater on the coast
of Vancouver Island, British Columbia, to coastal urban markets on the western seaboard of
North America. Polaris believes that construction aggregates shipped from British Columbia
can successfully compete with land-based resources that must be transported to those
markets by truck over long distances on congested roads, or by extended rail distribution.

The Company’s most advanced property is the 88%-owned Orca Sand & Gravel Project, which
comprises three large, high-quality sand and gravel deposits located near Port McNeill. All
necessary permits, both Federal and Provincial, have been received to enable development
of the first of these deposits and the associated processing plant, ship loader, and related
facilities (the Orca Quarry). The Company also owns 70% of the fully permitted Eagle Rock
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End Uses of Construction Aggregates

Concrete and asphalt manufacturing
Residential, commercial and industrial
buildings
Road construction
Sea and river defense works
Drainage and pipe bedding

January 10, 2006:
Polaris’ shares are

listed on the Toronto
Stock Exchange.



· Polaris must offer to repurchase the outstanding loans at a redemption price equal to
101% of the principal amount if there is a change of control of the Company.

On January 26, 2006, the Company elected to reduce the Tranche B facility from US$26
million to US$ 10 million. This resulted in a reduction of the Tranche B warrant fee from
3,000,000 warrants to 1,153,846 warrants.

ORCA SAND & GRAVEL PROJECT

The Orca Sand & Gravel Project comprises three extensive sand and gravel deposits located
near Port McNeill on Vancouver Island, British Columbia. The principal deposit, the East
Cluxewe deposit, lies on private land to the west of Highway 19 and to the east of the
Cluxewe River. It will be the first deposit to be extracted from this major, low cost, high
quality sand and gravel project. The West Cluxewe deposit lies to the west of the Cluxewe

River and a third deposit, Bear Creek, is
located to the east of the East Cluxewe
deposit.

Ownership

The land hosting the Orca Project is fee
simple, private property owned by two
major forestry companies. The East
Cluxewe and Bear Creek deposits are
located in an area that both the
Kwakiutl and Namgis First Nations claim
to be their traditional territories. The
West Cluxewe deposit lies within
traditional territory exclusively claimed

by the Kwakiutl. In order to accommodate the asserted territorial rights of the First Nations,
Polaris entered into a series of agreements that established a cooperative relationship
between all parties and allowed the project to gain the support of these communities.

The Kwakiutl and Polaris executed an impact and benefits agreement (IBA) in March 2005.
The IBA includes the following principal terms:
· It governs the Orca Quarry, comprising the East Cluxewe deposit, the processing plant

site, and the associated ship loader.
· Staged cash payments, based on the progress of the Orca Quarry, will be paid to the

Kwakiutl.
· A royalty per tonne of construction aggregates sold by the Orca Quarry will be paid to

the Kwakiutl.
· Certain preferential opportunities will be granted to the Kwakiutl for business

development, employment, and training within its community.
· In the event that treaties are settled over the Orca Quarry, the Kwakiutl will not impose

a tenure or tax regime, for a period of 20 years from the date of such treaties, which is
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Toronto Stock Exchange. A total of 15,628,185 common shares were sold, 13,542, 000
common shares pursuant to the offering and 2,086,185 common shares pursuant to the
agents option, for gross proceeds of $75,015,288.

A total of 1,000,000 common shares were sold pursuant to the over-allotment option, which
closed on February 2, 2006, for gross proceeds of $4,800,000.

In summary, 16,628,185 common shares were sold pursuant to the IPO for gross proceeds of
$79,815,288.

Bridge Loan Facility

On November 30, 2005, the Company entered into a credit agreement with Ingalls and
Snyder Value Partners L.P. and a group of accredited investors arranged by Ingalls & Snyder
LLC for a bridge facility to fund the development and operation of the Orca Quarry and the
related shipping and sale of products. The credit agreement closed on January 6, 2006, and
was amended on January 9, 2006. The principal terms of the amended agreement are as
follows:

· The total facility is for up to US$47 million and comprises a Tranche A facility of US$21
million and a Tranche B facility of up to US$26 million.

· Both Tranches mature on January 1, 2012.
· The amounts drawn are at the Company’s sole discretion. Amounts must be drawn in

increments of US$5 million (or the balance of a Tranche facility) at any time up to
December 31, 2006, and Tranche A must be fully drawn before any draws on Tranche B. 

· Loans may be prepaid at any time, without penalty, by the Company on at least 30 days’
notice, in amounts of not less than US$0.5 million.

· Tranche A will bear interest at 10% during 2006, 12.5% during 2007, 15% during 2008,
17.5% during 2009 and 20% during 2010 and 2011. Tranche B will bear interest at 15%
during 2006, 17.5% during 2007, 20% during 2008, 22.5% during 2009, and 25% during
2010 and 2011. Interest is payable semi-annually on June 30 and December 31 of each
year, commencing on the first of such dates to occur after the initial drawdown.

· With respect to Tranche A, the Company, at its sole one-time election, within 30 days of
the first shipment of construction aggregates products from the Orca Quarry, will either
issue to the lender for no additional consideration, one million share purchase warrants,
or grant the lender a royalty fee of US$0.21 per short ton on 88% of the shipments of
construction aggregates products from the Orca Quarry. With respect to Tranche B, the
Company, at its sole one-time election, within 30 days of the first shipment of
construction aggregates products from the Project, will either issue to the lender for no
additional consideration, three million warrants (provided however that the number of
warrants will be reduced proportionately to any reduction in the Tranche B facility that
is requested by the Company on or before January 31, 2006), or grant the lender a
royalty fee of US$0.03 per short ton on 88% of the shipments of construction aggregates
products from the Orca Quarry for each US$1 million of the Tranche B facility elected by
the Company. Each warrant will allow the holder to purchase one common share of the
Company at $4.80 per common share until November 30, 2010.

· The loans are secured by the assets of the Company and certain subsidiaries.
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Environmental Assessment and Permitting

In January 2005, Polaris filed an application for an Environmental Assessment Certificate
(EAC) with the British Columbia Environmental Assessment Office for a quarry operation of
up to six million tonnes per annum, and concurrently filed for the Mine Permit with the
British Columbia Ministry of Energy, Mines and Petroleum Resources. The EAC and the Mine
Permit for the Orca Quarry were received in July 2005.

The project also required approvals from two federal agencies thereby triggering the
Canadian Environmental Assessment Act. In October 2005, after a Comprehensive Study
review, the Federal Environment Minister cleared the project to proceed under the Canadian
Environmental Assessment Act, a decision which enabled the federal agencies involved to
issue the necessary permits. Polaris subsequently received a Navigable Waters Protection Act

approval from Transport Canada in October 2005 and a
Fisheries Act authorisation from Fisheries and Oceans
Canada in November 2005. 

Reserves and Resources

Resources

For the East Cluxewe deposit, Polaris conducted initial
environmental and archaeological overviews followed by
seismic testing and drilling programs, independently
supervised by Beck & Associates GeoConsultants Inc. of
Vancouver. Extensive product testing was undertaken by
independent laboratories. Beck & Associates issued a NI 43-
101 technical report for the East Cluxewe deposit in
February 2004 which was updated in August 2005. Beck also
reported resources in the West Cluxewe deposit and
supervised a limited exploration program of the Bear Creek
deposit, issuing a NI 43-101 technical report in August 2005.

The East Cluxewe resource estimate established by Beck
was subsequently validated by AMEC Americas Limited
(AMEC) in their NI 43-101 technical report dated October
2005 (the AMEC Report).

Polaris Annual Report 2005 9

less favourable than the tenure and tax regime that would have governed had the
treaties not been settled.

The Namgis decided to acquire a participating interest in the Orca Quarry and to hold their
interests in the Orca Quarry and the Bear Creek area through a limited partnership. In April
2005, the Namgis and Polaris executed a partnership agreement and an IBA over that area. 

The partnership agreement includes the following principal terms:
· Polaris owns 88% and the Namgis own 12% of the partnership.
· Polaris will contribute the funding for the first $1 million of project expenditures of the

partnership.
· After project expenditures exceed $1 million and prior to making a construction

decision, Polaris will lend the Namgis funds to meet their share of the costs, at an
interest rate of bank prime plus a small margin.

· Subsequent to the approval of a project feasibility study, Polaris will negotiate the debt
component of the project development financing and the limited partners will be
expected to contribute their share of the equity portion. The Namgis may elect that
Polaris fund their equity contribution, at a substantially higher interest rate.

· Funds advanced to the Namgis will be repayable solely from project cash flows, and
without recourse to the Namgis.

· On the 25th anniversary of the project development financing, the Namgis will have the
one-time right to increase their ownership in the partnership by 50%, by purchasing
partnership units from Polaris for cash at fair market value.

The Namgis IBA also provides for preferential opportunities to the Namgis for business
development, employment and training within its community, together with direct local
community funding based on the tonnage of construction aggregates sold by the partnership.
In the event that treaties are settled over the project area, the Namgis have also agreed
not to impose a tenure or tax regime on the partnership, for a period of 20 years from the
date of such treaties, which is less favourable than the tenure and tax regime that would
have governed had the treaties not been settled.

Tenure

In March 2005, Polaris executed a lease, which is extendable at Polaris’ option for up to 50-
years, with Western Forest Products, the freehold title owner to the lands hosting the East and
West Cluxewe deposits. In addition, a two-year licence of occupation for the foreshore area,
required to establish the ship loading facility, was obtained in September 2005 from Land and
Water British Columbia Inc. A foreshore lease replacing the licence will be negotiated
subsequent to the completion of a legal survey of the licence area. In September 2005, the
Orca Quarry site was rezoned for the project by the Regional District of Mount Waddington. 

In March 2004, the Company entered into an exploration agreement with Island Timberlands
Limited Partnership (previously Weyerhaeuser Company Limited) over an area including the
Bear Creek deposit. The exploration agreement gives Polaris the exclusive right to negotiate a
long term lease by June 2006 and the Company intends to exercise this right. 
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Feasibility Study

Overview

AMEC examined and evaluated the environmental, technical, and economic feasibility of the
Orca Quarry, including the related Richmond Terminal, shipping, discharge, and sales of
products. AMEC also examined the construction aggregates markets in California, the
Company’s targeted markets in the coastal urban centres of California, and the Company’s
sales projections. 

Economic Analysis

The Project Case included in the AMEC Report incorporated 100% of the assets and
operations of the Orca Quarry, including the Richmond Terminal, and did not reflect the
beneficial ownership interests of the Company in those assets and operations. In addition,
the Project Case assumed that the development of the Orca Quarry, including the Richmond
Terminal, would be funded exclusively by equity.

Since the Company has an 88% indirect ownership interest in the Orca Quarry and a 70%
indirect ownership interest in the Richmond Terminal, the Company prepared a second
evaluation (the Beneficial Case) that recognised the different beneficial interests of the
Company in the Orca Quarry and the Richmond Terminal. The Beneficial Case also
incorporated the debt expected to be arranged by the Company, and the expected financing
arrangements of the Company’s First Nation partners for their shares of the development
costs of the Orca Quarry and the Richmond Terminal. The Beneficial Case was derived from
and based on the Project Case included in the AMEC Report.
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The Orca Project resources are summarised as follows:

Million Tonnes

Indicated and
Inferred Indicated Measured Measured

Resources(1) Resources(1) Resources(1) Resources

East Cluxewe deposit(2) - 24.3 109.8 134.1
Bear Creek deposit(3) 34.0 22.5 14.7 37.2
West Cluxewe deposit(3) 4.0 14.0 20.0 34.0

Note:  
(1) Mineral resources are not mineral reserves and do not have demonstrated economic viability.  The mineral resources and reserves have 

been categorised in accordance with the classifications defined by the Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum (CIM).

(2) The estimates with respect to the East Cluxewe Deposit are taken from the AMEC Report.

(3) A Qualified Person has verified the data relating to this deposit.

Reserves

Reserve estimates were established by the AMEC Report and represent the above-water
table volumes in the conceptual mine plan multiplied by a combined mine and plant
recovery factor and adjusted for the specific gravity of the material. Reserves are a subset
of the resource numbers and the two values cannot be added or combined in any way.

Million Tonnes

Probable    Proven      Proven & 
Reserves(1) Reserves(1) Probable(1)

East Cluxewe deposit 23.1 98.5 121.6

Note:  
(1) The mineral reserves have been categorised in accordance with the classifications defined by the CIM.

(2) The estimates are taken from the AMEC Report.

Product Quality

Polaris has targeted the northern California construction
industry as its initial market for construction aggregates
from the Orca Quarry. It has conducted extensive
product testing using an independent California
laboratory, which confirmed that the Orca products will
be of a very high quality and exceed all technical
requirements for use in California and the United States
as determined by the California Department of
Transportation (CALTRANS) and the American Society for
the Testing of Materials (ASTM).
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Stratified sand and gravel from
Vancouver Island. Orca sand and
gravel products exceed all California
quality standards.

Drilling at Orca Quarry



Summary of the Project and Beneficial Cases (US$000's)

Project Beneficial
Case Case

Development and initial working capital for the Orca Quarry 55,669 48,989
Development and initial working capital for the Richmond Terminal 38,911 27,238
Loan received - 44,480
Loans granted - 15,800
IRR - % 21.8 23.8
NPV at 7.5% 198,618 162,028
NPV at 10.0% 130,615 107,704
Payback - years 5.7 5.6

Mine Development Plan

Mine production will incorporate the use of large, tandem-powered self-loading scrapers
discharging into a conveyor system feeding the processing plant. A dozer and wheeled front-
end loader will support the scrapers.

Production rates of saleable product will range from a low of 1.4 million tonnes per year
building up to nearly six million tonnes per year. This production build up will be achieved
by increasing the number of annual operating hours and then by adding another shift.
Detailed mine plans have been prepared for the life of the East Cluxewe resource and were
reviewed by AMEC in completing the feasibility study.

Material Processing

The processing of the sand and gravel is relatively simple because of the clean and well-
graded nature of the East Cluxewe deposit. It consists of screening to separate the
individual particle sizes, crushing of oversize gravel that is larger than 25 mm, followed by
washing of the products. Fine material (silt) which is removed during the washing process
will be removed either by filtration or settlement in ponds and eventually used in the site
reclamation.

The various products will be loaded aboard ships at a rate of 4,500 tonnes per hour being
withdrawn by gravity from large stockpiles onto a conveyor system connected to the ship
loader. 

Reclamation 

Reclamation will be progressive, commencing in approximately Year 3 to Year 4 of the
mining operation. Once progressive reclamation begins the soils salvaged ahead of the
mining advance will be hauled directly to areas ready for reclamation. Progressive
reclamation will keep the total area under disturbance to a minimum.
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Certain information relating to the shipping and sale of the Orca Quarry’s construction
aggregates is confidential and cannot be disclosed for competitive reasons.

Project Case

The Project Case was analyzed using a discounted cash flow approach, assuming 100% equity
financing and stated in 3rd quarter 2005 dollars. The cash flow projections incorporate the
capital costs, including working capital, operating costs, production and sales volumes, and
sales revenues over an estimated 25-year life of the Orca Quarry. The projections also include
the capital costs, including working capital, and operating costs of the Richmond Terminal, and
the costs of shipping construction aggregates from the Orca Quarry to the San Francisco Bay
and, later, to southern California. The estimated after-tax cash flows were used to determine
the net present value (NPV), the internal rate of return (IRR), and the payback period of the
equity invested from the date of first production (Payback).

For the purposes of the Project Case, the development cost of the Orca Quarry was estimated
at US$55.6 million, including initial working capital of US$4.0 million, and the construction cost
of the Richmond Terminal was estimated at US$38.9 million, including initial working capital of
US$2.4 million.

Cash production costs at the Orca Quarry, including royalties and overheads, were estimated at
US$3.57 per short ton in 2007, declining to US$2.12 per short ton in 2013, when the maximum
permitted production level is planned to be achieved.

The economic evaluation of AMEC confirmed the viability of the development and operation of
the Orca Quarry, including the Richmond Terminal, with an expected after-tax IRR of 21.8%, a
NPV of US$130.6 million (at a discount rate of 10%), and a Payback of 5.7 years. Based on the
estimated production schedule, the Orca Quarry has a life of approximately 25 years, based
solely on the reserves and resources contained in the East Cluxewe deposit.  

Beneficial Case

The Beneficial Case was based on the Project Case but reflected the Company’s 88% ownership
interest in the Orca Quarry and its 70% ownership interest in the Richmond Terminal. The
Beneficial Case also incorporated the Company’s share of bridging loans of US$47.0 million,
which were assumed to be refinanced in the third production year and repaid equally over ten
years at more favourable interest rates.

For the purposes of the Beneficial Case, the Company assumed that it would advance
approximately US$4.1 million to the Namgis for their 12% share of the Orca Quarry costs and
that it would earn interest and be repaid in accordance with the loan agreement between
Polaris and the Namgis. The Company also assumed that it would advance approximately
US$11.7 million to the Eagle Rock First Nations for their 30% share of the Richmond Terminal
costs, and that the advances would not bear interest nor be repaid during the life of the Orca
Quarry.

The Company’s equity investment in the Beneficial Case is expected to have an after-tax IRR of
23.8%, a NPV of US$107.7 million (at a discount rate of 10.0%), and a Payback of 5.6 years.
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PORT TERMINALS

Access to satisfactory port discharge terminal sites is a critical and cost-sensitive link in the
logistical chain between the quarry and the consumer.  There are three key conditions for a
suitable port site:  sufficient water depth with access for berthing the vessel, adjacent
accessible land for product storage and distribution facilities, and convenient road access
for the distribution of products to customers.

Richmond Terminal

Ownership

The Richmond Terminal is owned 70% by Polaris and 30% by the First Nations who hold
interests in the Eagle Rock Quarry. Polaris is currently negotiating with these First Nations to
finalize the terms for funds to be advanced to them, the AMEC feasibility study having
assumed the most conservative case. If successfully concluded, and subject to making a

construction decision for the Eagle Rock
Quarry within a specified period, Polaris
expects to receive interest on its advances
and the repayment of its principal by the
First Nations. The AMEC feasibility study
assumed that Polaris would neither receive
interest nor the repayment of the US$11.7
million forecast to be advanced to the First
Nations.

Tenure

In September 2004, Polaris, through its
Eagle Rock Aggregates subsidiary, entered
into a 40-year lease of land owned by Levin
Enterprises, Inc. on which to construct the
Richmond Terminal storage and distribution
facility in San Francisco Bay. In February
2006, Polaris executed a 30-year facilities

use agreement with Pacific Energy Ltd., which allows the Company’s vessels to discharge at
Pacific Energy’s berth and convey construction aggregates across their land to the adjacent
Richmond Terminal facility.    

Environmental and Permitting

In May 2004, the City of Richmond approved the Company’s application for the construction
and operation of a 2-million tons per annum aggregates receiving and distribution terminal
at the Levin-Richmond site. In February 2005, Polaris received the final environmental
permit from the San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission (BCDC) for
development of that site. Since the completion of the AMEC feasibility study, Polaris has
redesigned the proposed Richmond Terminal and, subject to receiving City of Richmond
building development approval, expects to materially reduce the construction cost from the
US$38.9 million included in the AMEC feasibility study.
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Construction and Development

On January 11, 2006, Polaris made a decision to construct and develop the Orca Quarry, triggering
the requirement for the Namgis, the Company’s 12% partner in the quarry, to contribute their
share of costs. The Namgis are currently arranging financing for their cash contributions but, in
the interim, Polaris has advanced funds to them pursuant to a loan facility granted by Polaris to
the Namgis for this purpose. The AMEC feasibility study assumed that Polaris would advance a
total of US$4.1 million to the Namgis under that facility. To date,
the Namgis have contributed approximately $579,650 of their
share of costs and the Company expects that they will be in a
position to contribute more in the future. The timing and amount
thereof have not yet been established.

As of March 1, 2006, contracts have been entered into with an
approximate value of $36.1 million for the supply and
installation of the sand and gravel processing plant, the supply
and installation of the ship loader and various ancillary
equipment supplies. In addition, mobile plant for the mining
operation with a value of $4.4 million has been ordered under a
finance lease agreement.

Construction of the Orca Quarry commenced in March 2006 and
on April 13, 2006, piling operations for the installation of the
ship loader will begin as governed by the strict timing window
contained in the Fisheries Act authorization for this work.
Production of sand and gravel is scheduled to commence in
December 2006 with the first shipment to northern California
expected in early 2007.
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transportation costs may rapidly increase, adding significantly to delivered prices.
The 2005 Market Report confirmed that there is a growing gap between the increasing
demand for construction aggregates and the availability of traditional local supplies in urban
coastal centers of California.

In northern California, the growing shortage of concrete grade aggregates has led to higher
delivered prices, as demand is satisfied by increased volumes of materials hauled over
longer distances, including increasing quantities of construction aggregate imported from
British Columbia by sea.

In southern California, local construction aggregate shortages are causing supply problems in
Ventura and San Diego Counties while, in the Los Angeles Basin areas, traditional sand and
gravel resources are rapidly being depleted. As in northern California, the delivered price of
concrete grade aggregates continues to increase.

In both northern and southern California, overall demand for construction aggregate is
driven primarily by population growth and the consequent need for infrastructure expansion
and maintenance. California is projecting steadily increasing population for the period 2000
to 2020 at a rate of 1.11% per annum compared with 0.87% for the nation as a whole.

Based on the 2005 Market Report, projected local production deficits for the combined areas
of San Francisco Bay, Los Angeles Basin and San Diego amount to 88 million tons per annum
by 2020.

Aggregate Supply Agreement

In October 2005, Polaris entered into a 20-year aggregates supply agreement (ASA) with an
arms length third party construction aggregates consumer (Consumer) located in the north
San Francisco Bay area. The ASA may be further extended by three 5-year periods, at the
option of the Consumer. The ASA has granted the Consumer the exclusive right to promote,
market, resell and distribute sand and gravel within a defined territory. In return, Polaris
has the right to be the exclusive provider of marine imported sand and gravel to the
Consumer within the same territory. The ASA provides for the purchase and supply of
minimum annual volumes of sand and gravel from the Orca Quarry for distribution within the
territory. The minimum annual sales of aggregates to be sold under the ASA are expected to
account for approximately 55% of projected sales in the first year of operation, and to
reduce to approximately 25% by the fourth year. Prices for the supply of sand and gravel
pursuant to the ASA will be reviewed on an annual basis and adjusted to accommodate
variations in the market prices for similar products within the San Francisco Bay area.
Adjustments will be shared by the Consumer and the Polaris according to an agreed formula.

To achieve the projected build-up of volumes under the ASA, the Company is currently
focusing on increasing sales through the Richmond Terminal, securing deliveries by barge to
potential customers having limited water depth availability, and by the utilization of an
existing marine aggregate terminal within the San Francisco Bay area.  
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Construction and Development

A significant redesign of the terminal has been undertaken in order to reduce capital costs
conditioned by the very poor load bearing capacity of the Bay muds which underlie the site.
The redesign work is nearing completion and the Company is confident that material capital
cost savings will be achieved compared with the estimates utilized for the AMEC feasibility
study. Construction on this site is now expected to commence in June 2006. The installation
of the storage and distribution terminal is not complex and a relatively short construction
period is anticipated.

Other Terminals

Polaris continues to seek additional port terminal sites in northern and southern California
that will enable the Company to meet construction aggregate supply deficits and achieve
projected sales volumes.

SHIPPING

In July 2005, Polaris executed a 10-year contract of affreightment with CSL International
Inc., the operator of the largest fleet of Panamax-class, self-unloading vessels in the world.
This freight contract, in conjunction with the barging arrangements available to the
Company within the Bay, provides a cost-competitive and reliable marine shipping solution.
Barging allows construction aggregates from the Orca Quarry to be partially unloaded at
anchorage before the vessel docks at the Richmond Terminal, where waters are too shallow
for fully loaded self-discharging vessels. These freight and barging arrangements will cost-
effectively distribute construction aggregates to customers at previously inaccessible sites.

MARKETING AND SALES

Aggregate Market Report

In 2005, Polaris retained the services of David A Holmes, R. Geo. (USA), of Holmes Reserves
LLC in Colorado, (a Qualified Person as defined under NI 43-101) to prepare an updated
market study (the 2005 Market Report) of the areas in and around San Francisco Bay, Los
Angeles, and San Diego. The study focused on the supply and demand balance in these
markets, identified aggregate production sources, key consumers, and price trends. The
following information is based on the 2005 Market Report.

Supply and Demand

Although the overall demand for construction aggregates reflects economic cycles, large public
works construction projects such as interstate highways, airport construction and port expansion
can significantly influence regional aggregate consumption. In non-coastal, less urbanized areas,
plentiful supplies of good quality aggregate can usually be found and most quarries deliver
construction aggregate within a 30-mile radius. If nearby quarries do not exist, however,
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through the purchase of a portion of the Company’s interest for cash at fair market value.

In the event that treaties are settled over the quarry area, the First Nations have agreed not
to impose a tenure or tax regime on the Eagle Rock Quarry for a term of at least 25 years
from the date of such treaties, which is less favourable than the tenure and tax regime that
would have governed had the treaties not been settled.

An Impact and Benefits framework agreement has also been reached between the Eagle Rock
Quarry and the Hupacasath and Ucluelet to provide preferential opportunities to the First
Nations for business development, employment and training within their communities,
together with direct community funding.

Permits, Rezoning, and Tenure

The major project permits, namely the Environmental Assessment Certificate (EAC) and the
Mine Permit, were received in September 2003. In October 2003, an application to rezone
the project site was approved by the Alberni-Clayoquot Regional District. Federal permits
are not required for this development.

The project is located on Crown land, and a 50-year lease over the project area was entered
into with the Province of British Columbia in March 2005. The Port Alberni Port Authority has
granted foreshore tenure in principle, and a foreshore lease is currently being negotiated.
Discussions are underway with the British Columbia Ministry of Forests and Range to delete
the project site from within the existing tree farm licence.  
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EAGLE ROCK QUARRY

The proposed Eagle Rock Quarry is the Company’s second property. Polaris has evaluated and
secured tenure and permits that are expected to result in the ultimate development of this
second quarry. The Eagle Rock Quarry is currently on hold while the Company focuses on the
development of the Orca Quarry and initial California port terminals, and while Polaris

endeavours to secure a market for
Eagle Rock’s products.

Eagle Rock is a fully-permitted, very
large resource of high quality granite
suitable for asphalt paving and ready-
mix concrete production. It is located
on deep tidewater 15 kilometres south
of Port Alberni on Vancouver Island,
British Columbia. It has the potential
to be developed into one of the
largest, lowest cost, high quality
construction aggregate quarries on the
west coast of North America.  

Ownership

The Eagle Rock Quarry is 70% owned by Polaris and 30% by local First Nations. The
Hupacasath and Ucluelet First Nations each own 10%, and the remaining 10% is held in trust
for the Tseshaht First Nation, who also assert traditional territorial rights over the project
area. The Tseshaht have chosen not to participate in the project on the same basis as the
other two First Nations at this time. The project agreement provides that, if the Tseshaht do
not take up their trust interest within 15 days of the completion of a feasibility study of the
Eagle Rock Quarry, the Hupacasath and Ucluelet will be entitled to acquire the Tseshaht trust
interest.

Polaris will finance the Eagle Rock Quarry until a feasibility study is approved. Thereafter, it
will negotiate the debt component of the project
financing and the Eagle Rock Quarry participants will
be requested to contribute their share of the equity
portion. As an alternative, the First Nations may
elect that Polaris fund their equity contribution at
an interest rate closely referenced to the internal
rate of return of the project, and without recourse
to the First Nations. In the event that Polaris funds
the First Nations, its interest in the Eagle Rock
Quarry will increase from 70% to 79%. 

On the 25th anniversary of the project development
financing, each First Nation will have the one-time
right to increase its ownership in Eagle Rock by 50%,

Polaris Annual Report 200518

 
P a c i f i c  O c e a n

S t r a i t  o f  G e o r g i a
Port Alberni

Lake Cowichan Duncan

Victoria

Vancouver

Ucluelet

Comox

Parksville
Qualicum Beach

NanaimoEAGL ROCK QUARRY

V A N C O U V E R  I S L A N D

Future location of Eagle
Rock Quarry ship loader.

Eagle Rock partnership signing.



opportunity to contribute to the planning process. This approach enabled the Company to build
relationships that held a shared vision and common goals for project development and operations.
Accordingly, Polaris has received strong community support and has developed direct partnerships
with the local First Nations at both the Orca and Eagle Rock Quarries.

These partnerships have been widely acknowledged as groundbreaking agreements and as industry
best practices. The agreements are also being used as models by other corporations and First
Nation communities.

Polaris will continue to ensure that its operations provide benefits to the local communities. The
first and most direct contribution will be through training, the creation of jobs, and local business
opportunities. The Company will also ensure that its operations are well integrated into the
communities in which it operates.

Environment

Polaris is committed to the highest practices and standards of environmental protection and
stewardship. The Company’s goal is to prevent, minimise and mitigate adverse impacts arising
from its operations.

The plan and philosophy behind the Company’s relationship with the local communities and the
environment are inspired by modern principles of social, economic and environmental
sustainability. Polaris believes that sustainability is an ideal state in which its actions have little or
no adverse impacts on the choices and opportunities of future generations.

Polaris is committed to establishing an Environmental Management System meeting ISO 14001
standards for the Orca Quarry.

Polaris Annual Report 2005 21

Mineral Resource

AMEC has quantified the following resource, established in accordance with NI 43-101:

Million Tonnes

Total
Measured

and
Inferred(1) Indicated(1) Measured(1) Indicated

Eagle Rock Deposit(2) 23.0 448.9 238.0 686.9

Note:
(1) Mineral resources are not mineral reserves and do not have demonstrated economic viability. The mineral resources have been 

categorised in accordance with the CIM Standards.

(2) A Qualified Person has verified the data relating to this deposit.

Independent laboratory testing results for the coarse crushed product demonstrated that the
material is of a very high quality, is extremely hard and durable, and exceeds all technical
requirements for use in California and the United States in asphalt and concrete mixes.
Significant quantities of dust are generated in a hard rock crushing plant and the project
allows for this to be further processed into a manufactured sand product which is expected
to be very well graded and to meet all ASTM and CALTRANS specifications for manufactured
concrete sand.

Quarry Feasibility Study

A feasibility study for the quarry was commenced in 2003 but is presently on hold in view of
the later timing for possible development of this quarry.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Community

Mineral resource extraction is an important primary industry in British Columbia and a powerful
contributor to regional economic development, particularly in remote regions where economic
diversification opportunities are limited. The contribution of resource development to community
sustainability begins at the earliest stages of exploration and extends through construction,
operation, mine closure and long-term care and maintenance.

From the beginning, Polaris paid particular attention to local communities and the traditional
rights of the First Nations in whose traditional territories it planned to undertake project
activities. It engaged these communities and their leaders in an open and constructive dialogue
that led to an understanding of their aspirations and priorities. Polaris also pro-actively sought to
ensure that communities and groups were kept well informed and had a meaningful and ongoing
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result in significant capital cost savings. Discussions are also being held with the Company's First
Nations partners in connection with the funding of their share of the capital costs, and progress has
been encouraging.

The environmental assessment certificate and mine permit for the Eagle Rock Quarry have been
received. However, the demand for crushed coarse aggregates and manufactured sand in the targeted
San Francisco Bay markets has been less than anticipated. The Company believes that demand for
those products will develop in time but, in the interim, activities at the Eagle Rock Quarry have been
restricted. The cost of keeping this project in good standing is not material.

SELECTED ANNUAL INFORMATION

The following table sets out selected consolidated financial information for the Company prepared in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.  The Company's reporting
currency is the Canadian dollar.  This information has been summarized from the Company's audited
consolidated financial statements for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.  This
selected consolidated financial information should only be read in conjunction with the Company's
consolidated financial statements.

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
$ $ $

Revenue Nil Nil Nil
Interest income 83,000 158,000 16,000
Loss for the year (3,447,000) (2,786,000) (2,075,000)
Basic and diluted loss per share (0.27) (0.22) (0.22)
Cash and cash equivalents 1,152,000 6,160,000 951,000
Net working capital 229,000 5,822,000 657,000
Total assets 9,686,000 11,538,000 4,360,000
Total long term liabilities Nil Nil Nil
Dividends declared Nil Nil Nil

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company incurred a loss of $3,447,000 ($0.27 per
share) compared to a loss of $2,786,000 ($0.22 per share) in the comparative year.  Operating
activities, taking into account non-cash items and non-cash working capital, used cash of $2,006,000
for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to cash outflow of $2,280,000 in the 2004 year.

The Company had no operating revenues during the year, and the losses were attributable to
expenses incurred, as discussed below.

Expenses of $3,531,000 were charged to operations during the year ended December 31, 2005,
compared to expenses of $2,944,000 in the year ended December 31, 2004. 

· Community relations expenses remained consistent for the year ended December 31, 2005, at
$610,000 compared to $660,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004.  The majority of these
costs represented funding of the Kwakiutl and Namgis First Nations in connection with the
restructuring of their participating interests in the Orca Project. Following a final large payment
to the Kwakiutl in the September 2005 quarter, these matters have now been resolved and costs
are generally expected to decline in line with the lower level of community activities at the Orca
Project and the Eagle Rock Quarry.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of the financial condition and operations of Polaris Minerals
Corporation (the "Company") has been prepared by management as of March 30, 2006, and should be
read in conjunction with the Company's audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2005, which have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.

OVERVIEW

The Company is focused on the emerging trade of marine exports of construction aggregates from its
coastal properties located on Vancouver Island, British Columbia, Canada to urban markets located on
the western seaboard of North America.

The Company currently has two potential construction aggregates properties, the Orca Sand & Gravel
Project (the "Orca Project") and the Eagle Rock Quarry.  The demand for natural sand and gravel
remains strong in the Company's targeted markets whereas demand for crushed granite products from
the Eagle Rock Quarry has yet to be established. Accordingly, the development of the Orca Project
has taken precedence over the Eagle Rock Quarry.

The Company is currently developing the East Cluxewe deposit of the Orca Project, together with the
associated process plant and ship loader (the "Orca Quarry"). All requisite provincial and federal
approvals and permits for the Orca Quarry have been received. The Company has executed a long-
term profit a prendre over the Orca Quarry and West Cluxewe deposit and has the exclusive right to
complete a profit a prendre over the Bear Creek deposit. The Company has also obtained a licence of
occupation for the shiploader, which will be converted into a long-term foreshore lease.

The Company has secured a lease and environmental and planning approvals for a receiving, storage
and distribution facility in the Port of Richmond, San Francisco Bay (the "Richmond Terminal"). It has
also executed a facilities use agreement for the associated berthing dock.  

A long-term freight agreement has been executed for the delivery of products from the Orca Quarry
to certain discharge points in San Francisco Bay. Vessels will be partially discharged into third party
barges ("lightered") at anchorage in the Bay prior to discharging the balance of the cargo at the
Richmond Terminal and a proposed third party terminal. This lightering arrangement offers the most
economical shipping solution. The Company has also entered into a long-term aggregates supply
agreement with a well established construction aggregates consumer located in the San Francisco Bay
area. The agreement will account for approximately 55% of the projected first year sales of the Orca
Quarry, falling to 25% of year four sales.

The Company has completed an independent feasibility study that confirmed the viability of the
development and operation of the Orca Quarry and the Richmond Terminal. In January 2006, the
Company closed its initial public offering ("IPO") on the Toronto Stock Exchange, and raised gross
proceeds of approximately $80 million.  The Company also closed a bridge debt facility for up to
US$47 million, which the Company subsequently elected to reduce to US$31 million. Shortly
thereafter, the Company made the decision to construct the Orca Quarry and the Richmond Terminal.  

Construction is expected to be completed within approximately twelve months of the construction
decision date, and the first shipment of construction aggregates is expected in the first quarter of
2007. The Company has entered into construction contracts for the ship loader and the process plant,
and has entered into procurement agreements for the loadout conveyor system and mobile equipment
for the Orca Quarry. A redesign of the Richmond Terminal is currently underway, which is expected to
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Tranche B fee, the Company must elect either to grant 1,153,846 warrants (reduced from 3,000,000 due
the election of the Company to reduce the Tranche B facility from US$26 million to US$10 million ) or
grant a royalty of US$0.03 per short ton on 88% of  construction aggregates shipments for each US$1
million of that facility.  Each Tranche A and B warrant is exercisable into one common share at $4.80 per
share until November 30, 2010. The Tranche A and B warrants and royalty certificates have been issued
and are being held in trust.  Draw downs under the facility may be made at the discretion of the
Company until December 31, 2006, and as of March 30, 2006, no funds had been drawn down. 

The Company issued 40,000 common shares pursuant to the exercise of options during the year ended
December 31, 2005, for proceeds of $36,000. 

In the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company closed a private placement of 2,500,000 special
warrants at $4.00 per special warrant and raised net proceeds of $9,262,000.  As a result of the Company
receiving a receipt for its initial public offering final prospectus on December 22, 2005, the Company's
2,500,000 outstanding special warrants were converted into 2,750,000 common shares for no additional
consideration.

INVESTING

The Company has adopted the accounting policy of capitalising only direct third party costs incurred on
projects determined to be viable, and charges all other costs to operations, including salary and support
costs; marketing studies and initiatives; and community relations programs. 

Orca Sand & Gravel Project
The Company capitalised $1,454,000 to the Orca Project during the year ended December 31, 2005,
compared to $1,212,000 in 2004. The remediation of an old dump adjacent to the Cluxewe River, but
outside the Company's lease area, accounts for a major portion of the costs for the year. This
remediation was mandated by the Land Titles Act and was therefore a precondition to the execution and
registration of the lease agreement with Western Forest Products Inc. ("WFP"). However, an agreement is
in place to recover 50% of these costs from Orca Quarry royalties payable to WFP. Other costs were
attributable to environmental and mine permit applications, assessment work on the mineral claims, the
development of the independent feasibility study and the development of drawings for the Orca Quarry
ship loader. 

Eagle Rock Quarry
No costs were capitalised to the Eagle Rock Quarry during the year ended December 31, 2005, and
$60,000 was capitalized to the quarry in 2004.  Costs incurred in 2004 comprised survey costs for the
Crown lease. 

Shipping and Terminals
During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company capitalised costs of $768,000 compared to
$450,000 in 2004. Costs in 2005 were principally incurred in connection with the Company's leased
terminal site at the Port of Richmond, permitting and on product testing.  2004 costs mainly comprised
technical evaluations, environmental and permitting, and tenure costs in connection with its terminal
and shipping interests. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At December 31, 2005, the Company had working capital of $229,000, including cash of $1,152,000
compared to working capital of $5,822,000 and cash of $6,160,000 at December 31, 2004.
Subsequent to year end, the Company raised gross equity proceeds of approximately $80 million and
arranged a debt facility of approximately $55 million (US$47 million) that was subsequently reduced
by the Company to approximately $36 million (US$31 million). The Company expects that these
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· General and administrative costs in the year ended December 31, 2005, increased to $915,000
from $783,000 in the 2004 year. A substantial portion of these costs were legal fees incurred by
the Company in the restructuring of the First Nations' participating interests in the Orca Project,
which has now been completed. 

· Marketing costs in the year ended December 31, 2005, increased to $385,000 from $321,000 in the
year ending December 31, 2004. These higher costs were mainly attributable to executing
independent marketing studies, and to a higher level of marketing activity.

· Salaries and benefits increased to $804,000 in the year ended December 31, 2005, from $758,000
in 2004, mainly as a result of increased staffing levels in the fourth quarter of 2005. 

· An expense of $818,000 was recorded in the year ended December 31, 2005, for stock-based
compensation compared with $422,000 in the year ended December 31, 2004. During the year, the
Company granted 192,500 options resulting in a charge of $302,000 and extended the exercise
period of options outstanding, from five years to ten years which resulted in a charge of
$516,000, for a total expense of $818,000.  

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS

The selected financial information set out below is based on and derived from the unaudited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for each of the quarters listed:

FINANCING

Subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company closed its initial public offering and
issued 16,628,185 common shares at $4.80 per share for gross proceeds of $79,815,000. A cash
commission equal to 6.0% of the gross proceeds was also paid to the agent.  On January 10, 2006, the
Company's shares were listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange and commenced trading.

The Company also closed a US$47 million debt facility subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2005.
The facility comprised two Tranches, A and B, for US$21 million and US$26 million, respectively.  The
loans are repayable on January 1, 2012, but may be prepaid at any time without penalty. The loans bear
interest that increases annually, commencing at 10% and 15% for Tranche A and Tranche B respectively in
2006, and increasing to a maximum of 20% to 25% per annum respectively in 2011.  Subsequent to the
first sale of a shipment of construction aggregates from the Orca Quarry, the Company must elect either
to grant 1,000,000 warrants or grant a royalty of US$0.21 per short ton on 88% of construction aggregates
shipments for the life of the quarry to the lenders as the Tranche A fee. Similarly, with respect to the
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Three Months Ended

2005 2004

Dec. 31, Sept. 30, June 30, March 31, Dec. 31, Sept. 30, June 30, March 31,
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Revenue Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Interest
income 12,969 20,480 27,015 22,974 51,442 39,542 46,791 19,882

Loss for
the quarter (663,615) (1,077,440) (621,716) (1,084,368) (718,214) (552,174) (806,491) (709,256)

Basic and
diluted loss
per share (0.06) (0.08) (0.05) (0.08) (0.06) (0.04) (0.06) (0.06)



or normal operation of the assets.  The section requires the recognition of all legal obligations
associated with retirement, whether by sale, abandonment, recycling or other disposal of assets.
Under this standard, these obligations are initially measured at the present value of the future
obligation and subsequently adjusted for the accretion of discount and any changes in the underlying
cash flows.  The asset retirement cost is to be capitalized to the related asset and amortized over
time.  Adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.

The Company has also adopted Accounting Guideline 15 (AcG-15), Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities (VIE), effective January 1, 2005, whereby the guideline establishes when a company should
consolidate a variable interest entity in its financial statements. AcG-15 provides the definition of a
VIE and requires a VIE to be consolidated if a company is at risk of absorbing the VIE's expected
losses, or is entitled to receive the majority of the VIE's expected residual returns, or both. The
adoption of AcG-15 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and prepaid expenses and deposits,
accounts payable and accruals and provisions approximate their book value due to their short-term
nature.  Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term investments held in the form of high
quality commercial paper.  The investment terms are three months or less at the time of acquisition
and are highly liquid to ensure that funds are available to meet the financial obligations of the
Company. 

CAPITAL STOCK

As at the date of this report, the Company had unlimited common shares authorized, of which
29,624,845 were outstanding. The Company also had 1,850,000 options outstanding exercisable into
1,850,000 common shares.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

During 2005, the Company was served a petition made to the Supreme Court of British Columbia by
the Komoyue Heritage Society and others disputing the issuance to the Company of the environmental
assessment certificate for the Orca Quarry.  The Company believes that the petition is without merit
and has taken action to protect its interest in the status of the environmental assessment certificate.

The development and operation of the Company's construction aggregates properties involves a high
degree of financial risk.  The risk factors which should be taken into account in assessing the
Company's activities include, but are not necessarily limited to, those set out in the paragraphs
below.  These risks are not intended to be presented in any assumed order of priority.  Any one or
more of these risks could have a material effect on the Company and should be taken into account in
assessing the Company's activities.

The quarrying industry is competitive and the Company may not secure the construction aggregates
sales volumes and prices anticipated for the Orca Quarry.  As the Company's sales will be in US
dollars, currency fluctuations may adversely affect the Company's revenues once sales commence.
Further, the Company must secure access to additional discharge points and additional shipping
volumes for its products.  An additional risk exists that the Company may be unable to meet minimum
freight contract volumes, particularly during the earlier years of the contract.

Quarrying involves a high degree of risk and the Company has no history of construction aggregates
project development or operations.  Additionally, certain groups are opposed to quarrying and could
attempt to interfere with the Company's operations, whether by legal process, regulatory process or
otherwise. The Company's title to its properties may be subject to disputes or other claims, including
land title claims of First Nations.  Construction aggregates quarrying, processing and development
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arrangements will finance the construction of the Orca Quarry and Richmond Terminal, and fund their
operations through to sustainable positive net cash flows in 2007. 

In December 2005, the Company committed to purchase $800,000 of steel pipe in order to meet the
critical path for the construction of the Company's ship loader at the Orca Quarry. Subsequent to its
construction decision in January 2006, the Company entered into certain contracts for the
construction of the Orca Quarry and the Richmond Terminal, which have been included in the
following table of contractual obligations:

Payments Due by Period

Less than 2-3 4-5 After
Total one year years years 5 years

Operating leases $185,000 $119,000 $66,000 - -
Orca Quarry - construction contracts $29,395,000 $29,395,000 - - -
Orca Quarry - purchase obligations $4,346,000 $4,346,000 - - -

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2005, a company controlled by a director provided services to
the Company in the United States in connection with its proposed shipping, discharging, and
marketing arrangements, at a cost of $247,000 (2004 - $238,000) and family members of a director
provided clerical services to the Company at a cost of $5,000 (2004 - $7,000). A director of certain of
the Company's subsidiaries provided community relations services to the Company during the year
amounting to $17,000 compared with $9,000 in 2004, and geological services were also provided by a
director in 2004 for $11,000 but no such services were provided in 2005. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The Company's accounting policies are described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
Both the accounting polices used and the estimates made by management can impact the
consolidated financial statements.  The Company considers the estimate of stock-based compensation
to be significant.

The Company uses the fair-value method of accounting for stock-based compensation related to
incentive stock options granted.  In determining the fair value, the Company makes estimates of the
expected volatility of the stock, the expected life of the option and the risk free rate.  Changes in
these estimates could result in the fair value of the stock-based compensation being less or greater
than the amount recorded.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

As of January 1, 2005, the Company adopted the recommendations of CICA Section 3870, Stock-based
Compensation and Other Stock-based Payments, in respect of options granted to employees and
directors.  Stock-based compensation is calculated on the date of the grant of options using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model.  The Company records the compensation expense on the dates
that the options vest.  This change in accounting policy was applied retroactively with restatement
for all periods commencing January 1, 2002.

The Company has adopted CICA 3110, Asset Retirement Obligations, which establishes standards for
the recognition, measurement and disclosure of asset retirement obligations and the related asset
retirement costs.  The standard applies to obligations associated with the retirement of property,
plant and equipment when those obligations result from the acquisition, construction, development
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Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2005 and 2004

(expressed in Canadian dollars)

activities are highly regulated and changes to government regulations or interpretation of those
regulations may also adversely affect the Company.  The Company currently depends on a single
property with a construction aggregate resource that has an estimated life of 25 years.  In order to
maintain its annual production the Company will be required to obtain other construction aggregates
resources in the future to bring into production.  The Company's operations are subject to
environmental risks and the actual costs of reclamation for the property are uncertain.  Further, the
Company's insurance will not cover all the potential risks associated with a quarrying operation.   

The Company is principally dependent upon its key personnel and will also be required to recruit and
retain personnel to facilitate the growth of the Company.  

The specifics of the Company's "risks" are detailed in disclosures with the heading "Risk Factors" in the
Company's periodic filings with securities regulators.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In accordance with Regulation 52-109 respecting certification of disclosure in issuers' annual and interim
filings, a system of internal control is maintained by management to provide reasonable assurance that
assets are safeguarded and financial information is accurate and reliable. The Company's Chief Executive
Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Chief Operating Officer (COO) have evaluated the
effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures as of the year ended December 31, 2005,
and have concluded, based on their evaluation, that these controls and procedures provide reasonable
assurance that (i) information required to be disclosed by the Company in its annual filings, interim filings
or other reports filed or submitted by it under applicable securities legislation is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the prescribed time periods, and (ii) material information regarding the
Company is accumulated and communicated to the Company's management, including its CEO, CFO and
COO in a timely manner. The Board of Directors approves the financial statements and ensures that
management discharges its financial responsibilities.  The Board's review is accomplished principally through
the audit committee, which is composed of independent non-executive directors.  The audit committee
meets periodically with management and auditors to review financial reporting and control matters.

OUTLOOK

The Company expects to meet its long-term business objective of becoming a leading exporter of
construction aggregates from British Columbia to the west coast of North America. Its principal goals
for 2006 are to:
· complete construction of the Orca Quarry and the Richmond Terminal.
· commence production and build product stockpiles at the Orca Quarry.
· secure additional construction aggregates sales contracts and terminal access.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements contained in this document that are not historical facts are forward looking statements
that involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual outcomes to differ materially from those
expressed or implied by those forward looking statements. Readers are therefore cautioned not to
place undue reliance on those statements, which speak only as of the date the statements were
made, and readers are advised to consider such forward-looking statements in light of the
aforementioned risks.

OTHER INFORMATION

Additional information related to the Company is available for viewing on SEDAR at www.sedar.com
and at the Company's website at www.polarmin.com.

Polaris Minerals Corporation
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Auditors' Report

To the Shareholders of
Polaris Minerals Corporation

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Polaris Minerals Corporation as at December 31,
2005 and 2004 and the consolidated statements of operations and deficit and cash flows for the years
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles. 

Chartered Accountants

Vancouver, British Columbia
February 27, 2006 
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Management's Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The consolidated financial statements of Polaris Minerals Corporation have been prepared by and are
the responsibility of the management of the Company. The consolidated financial statements are
prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and reflect
management's best estimates and judgement based on currently available information.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, consisting of three independent directors, meets
periodically with management and the independent auditors to review the scope and results of the
annual audit, and to review the financial statements and related financial reporting matters prior to
submitting the financial statements to the Board for approval.

The Company's independent auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, who are appointed by the
shareholders, conducted an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Their report outlines the scope of their audit and gives their opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Management has developed and maintains a system of internal controls to provide reasonable
assurance that the Company's assets are safeguarded, transactions are authorized and financial
information is accurate and reliable.

Marco A. Romero
President and Chief Executive Officer

Harry P. Sutherland
Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
February 27, 2006
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Polaris Minerals Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Deficit
For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

2005 2004
$ $

(restated - note 2)

Income
Interest 83,438 157,657

Expenses
Community relations 609,939 659,740
General and administrative 914,809 782,868
Marketing 384,533 320,950
Salaries and benefits 803,762 757,882
Stock-based compensation 817,534 422,352

3,530,577 2,943,792

Loss for the year (3,447,139) (2,786,135)

Deficit - beginning of year (8,404,002) (5,617,867)

Deficit - end of year (11,851,141) (8,404,002)

Basic and diluted loss per common share (0.27) (0.22)

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 12,980,639 12,526,386
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Polaris Minerals Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets 
As at December 31, 2005 and 2004
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

2005 2004
$ $

(restated - note 2)

Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,152,155 6,159,947
Accounts receivable 133,211 123,294
Prepaid expenses and deposits 334,733 187,032

1,620,099 6,470,273

Property, plant & equipment (note 3) 7,203,012 4,981,172
Other assets (note 4) 55,968 86,127
Deferred financing costs (note 5) 807,397 -

9,686,476 11,537,572

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Accounts payable 679,933 537,506
Accruals and provisions 711,067 110,985

1,391,000 648,491

Shareholders' Equity
Share capital (note 6) 18,629,705 9,332,014
Special warrants (note 7) - 9,261,691
Contributed surplus  (note 2) 1,516,912 699,378
Deficit (11,851,141) (8,404,002)

8,295,476 10,889,081

9,686,476 11,537,572

Commitments (note 8)
Contingency (note 12)
Subsequent events (note 14)

Approved by the Board of Directors

Roman Shklanka, Director Marco Romero, Director
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Polaris Minerals Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2005 and 2004
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

1 Nature of operations

The Company was incorporated on May 14, 1999. It is engaged in the development and future
operation of construction aggregates properties and projects located in western North America.

2 Significant accounting policies

Accounting principles

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles. 

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and it subsidiaries. The
subsidiaries and the Company's ownership interests therein, are as follows: Eagle Rock Materials Ltd.
(70%), Eagle Rock Aggregates, Inc. (70%), Quality Rock Holdings Ltd. (100%), Polaris Aggregates Inc.
(100%) and, effective April 2005, Orca Sand & Gravel Limited Partnership (88%), Orca Sand & Gravel
Ltd. (88%), Quality Sand & Gravel Ltd. (100%), and 5329 Investments Ltd. (100%).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term investments with original maturities of
three months or less from date of acquisition

Translation of foreign currency

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate
in effect at the balance sheet date and non-monetary assets and liabilities at the exchange rates in
effect at the time of acquisition or issue. Revenues and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rate in effect during the applicable accounting periods. Realized and unrealized foreign
exchange gains and losses are reflected in the consolidated statements of operations and deficit.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.  Significant areas where
management's judgement is applied include impairment of property plant & equipment and asset
retirement obligations, stock based compensation, estimating the useful life and rate of
depreciation for other assets and liability accruals and provisions.  These estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and revenue and expenses for the
periods reported.  Actual results may differ from those estimates.
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Polaris Minerals Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

2005 2004
$ $

(restated - note 2)

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year (3,447,139) (2,786,135)

Items not affecting cash
Amortization 38,874 39,498
Stock-based compensation 817,534 422,352

(2,590,731) (2,324,285)

Changes in non-cash working capital items
Accounts receivable (9,917) (59,538)
Prepaid expenses and deposits (147,701) (170,930)
Accounts payable 142,427 299,841
Accruals and provisions 600,082 (25,320)

584,891 44,053

(2,005,840) (2,280,232)

Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from issue of common shares 36,000 5,000
Net proceeds from issue of special warrants - 9,261,691
Deferred financing costs (807,397) -

(771,397) 9,266,691

Cash flows from investing activities
Property, plant and equipment costs (2,221,840) (1,722,402)
Other assets (8,715) (54,728)

(2,230,555) (1,777,130)

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (5,007,792) 5,209,329

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 6,159,947 950,618

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 1,152,155 6,159,947

Non-cash investing and financing activities (Note 13).
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Other assets

Other assets are recorded at cost. Motor vehicles are amortized over 3 years and office furniture
and equipment are amortized over 3.3 years.

Asset retirement obligation

The Company has adopted CICA 3110, Asset Retirement Obligations, which establishes standards
for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of asset retirement obligations and the related
asset retirement costs. The standard applies to obligations associated with the retirement of
property, plant and equipment when those obligations result from the acquisition, construction,
development or normal operation of the assets. The section requires the recognition of all legal
obligations associated with retirement, whether by sale, abandonment, recycling or other disposal
of assets. Under this standard, these obligations are recognized in the period in which a reasonable
estimate can be made.  They are initially measured at the present value of the future obligation
and subsequently adjusted for the accretion of discount and any changes in the underlying cash
flows. The asset retirement cost is capitalized to the related asset and amortized over time.
Adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.

Variable Interest Entities 

The Company has adopted Accounting Guideline 15 (AcG-15), Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities (VIE), effective January 1, 2005, whereby the guideline establishes when a company
should consolidate a variable interest entity in its financial statements. AcG-15 provides the
definition of a VIE and requires a VIE to be consolidated if a company is at risk of absorbing the
VIE's expected losses, or is entitled to receive the majority of the its expected residual returns, or
both. The adoption of Accounting Guideline 15 has not had a material impact on the Company’s
financial statements.

Stock options

The Company has a stock option plan as described in note 6(c).

Effective January 1, 2004, the Company adopted the recommendations of the new CICA Handbook
Section 3870, Stock-based Compensation and Other Stock-based Payments. This section
establishes standards for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of stock-based
compensation and other stock-based payments in exchange for goods and services. The section
requires that all stock-based awards made to non-employees be measured and recognized using a
fair value based method. The section encourages a fair value based method for all awards granted
to employees, but only requires the use of a fair value based method for direct awards of stock,
stock appreciation rights, and awards that call for settlement in cash or other assets.

As of January 1, 2005, the Company adopted the recommendations of CICA Section 3870 in
respect of options granted to employees and directors. Stock-based compensation is calculated on
the date of the grant of options using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Company
records the compensation expense on the dates that the options vest. This change in accounting
policy was applied retroactively with restatement for all periods commencing January 1, 2002.
For the year ended December 31, 2004, the restatement had the effect of increasing net loss by
$422,352 (2003 - $149,816; 2002 - $127,210), and increasing deficit and contributed surplus by
$699,378 (2003 - $277,026; 2002 - $127,210).

Accordingly, the fair value of all stock options granted is recorded over the vesting period as a
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Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses and deposits,
accounts payable and accruals and provisions approximate their book value due to their short-
term nature.

Financial risk

Financial risk is the risk arising from changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Company
does not use any derivative instruments to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost, which comprises direct, third party property
costs and excludes management and indirect costs. 

Construction aggregate property costs are deferred and will be amortized against future
production following commencement of commercial production, written down to net realizable
value, or written off if the properties are sold, allowed to lapse or are abandoned. Costs incurred
on properties prior to the acquisition or the determination of potentially viable deposits are
charged to operations. Carrying values do not necessarily reflect present or future values. The
recovery of carrying values will depend upon the Company establishing reserves, obtaining
financing for construction and attaining profitable operations (Note 3).

Shipping and terminal costs related to the acquisition, evaluation and development of shipping
and terminal access arrangements are deferred and will be amortized over the useful lives of the
underlying interests following commencement of operations, written down to net realizable
value, or written off if the underlying interests are allowed to lapse or are abandoned.  Carrying
values do not necessarily reflect present or future values and the recovery of carrying values will
depend upon the Company obtaining financing for construction and attaining profitable operations
(Note 3).  

Effective January 1, 2004, the Company adopted the new standard of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbook Recommendation contained in section 3063 relating to
impairment of long-lived assets. The Company reviews and evaluates its long-lived assets for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the related carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the asset carrying value exceeds
net recoverable amount. Net recoverable amount is generally determined using estimated
undiscounted future cash flows. Impairment is considered to exist if total estimated future cash
flows on an undiscounted basis are less than the carrying amount of the asset. An impairment loss
is measured and recorded based on the estimated fair value of the assets. Assumptions underlying
future cash flow estimates are subject to risks and uncertainties. Any differences between
significant assumptions used and actual market conditions and/or the Company's performance
could have a material effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations. Prior
to this adoption, impairment charges were determined using non-discounted estimated net
recoverable amounts. There was no impact on the financial statements resulting from the
implementation of this new standard.
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joint venture agreement and an impact and benefits agreement with the Namgis First Nation
(Namgis) over their traditional territory, also located on northern Vancouver Island. The Company
was the operator and owned 80% of both joint ventures, and each First Nation owned 20% of their
joint ventures. The asserted traditional territories of the First Nations partially overlap, and the
joint venture agreements provided that, in the event that a potential project was identified
within the area of overlap, the parties would establish a tripartite joint venture owned 80% by
the Company and 10% by each First Nation.

Initial reconnaissance exploration programs identified the East Cluxewe deposit (the Orca Quarry),
located to the west of Highway 19 and to the east of the Cluxewe River, the West Cluxewe
deposit, laying to the west of the Cluxewe River, and the Bear Creek deposit on the east of the
East Cluxewe deposit. The East Cluxewe and Bear Creek deposits lie within the overlap area,
whereas the West Cluxewe deposit is located in territory exclusively claimed by the Kwakiutl.

In October 2004, the Kwakiutl and the Company agreed to replace their joint venture agreement
with an impact and benefits agreement, which was executed in March 2005, and includes the
following principal terms:

· The agreement applies solely to the Orca Quarry site, which is governed by the environmental
assessment certificate.

· Staged cash amounts will be paid to the Kwakiutl.
· A royalty based on construction aggregates sold will be paid to the Kwakiutl.
· Certain preferential opportunities will be granted to the Kwakiutl for business development,

employment and training within their community.
· In the event that treaties are settled over the Orca Quarry site, the Kwakiutl will not impose a

tenure or tax regime, for a period of 20 years from the date of such treaties, which is less
favourable than the tenure and tax regime that would have governed had the treaties not
been settled.

The Company and the Namgis subsequently agreed to negotiate a limited partnership agreement,
a shareholders agreement, a loan agreement, and an impact and benefits agreement in
connection with the overlap area of the Orca Sand & Gravel Project, and to amend their joint
venture and impact and benefits agreements in connection with the balance of their asserted
traditional territory. 

In April 2005, the Company and the Namgis formed the Orca Sand & Gravel Limited Partnership
(the Partnership) and executed an impact and benefits agreement. The principal terms are as
follows:

· The Partnership and impact and benefits agreements apply to the project area within the
territories claimed by both the Namgis and Kwakiutl First Nations.

· The Company owns 88% and the Namgis owns 12% of the Partnership.
· Certain preferential opportunities will be granted to the Namgis for business development,

employment and training within their community.
· Contributions based on construction aggregates sold will be made by the Partnership to

foundations for communities located within the asserted traditional territories of the Namgis
and Kwakiutl.

· In the event that treaties are settled over the project area, the Namgis will not impose a
tenure or tax regime, for a period of 20 years from the date of such treaties, which is less
favourable than the tenure and tax regime that would have governed had the treaties not
been settled.

· In December 2031, the Namgis will have the one-time right to increase their then ownership
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charge to operations and a credit to contributed surplus.  Consideration paid on exercise of stock
options, in addition to the fair value attributed to stock options granted, is credited to share
capital.

Community relations

Community relations costs are incurred in communicating the environmental, technical, socio-
economic and legal aspects of the proposed project developments to local communities, and
providing assistance to enable them to understand and assess the implications of the proposed
project developments. Costs are expensed when incurred.

Income taxes

Income taxes are calculated using the liability method of accounting. Temporary differences
arising from the difference between the tax basis of an asset or liability and its carrying amount
on the balance sheet are used to calculate future income tax liabilities or assets. Future income
tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and laws that are expected to apply when
the temporary differences are expected to reverse.

Loss per common share

Loss per common share is calculated using the weighted average number of common shares and
special warrants issued and outstanding during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.
Special warrants are included in this calculation in accordance with EIC 50 as they are
automatically convertible into common shares upon expiry (note 7). All outstanding stock options
would be anti-dilutive and therefore have no effect on the determination of loss per share.

3 Property, plant & equipment

Orca Sand & Eagle Rock Shipping &
Gravel Quarry Terminals Total

$ $ $ $

Balance - December 31, 2003 940,277 1,438,028 880,465 3,258,770
Expenditures 1,212,071 60,477 449,854 1,722,402

Balance - December 31, 2004 2,152,348 1,498,505 1,330,319 4,981,172
Expenditures 1,454,299 - 767,541 2,221,840

Balance - December 31, 2005 3,606,647 1,498,505 2,097,860 7,203,012

a) Orca Sand & Gravel

The Orca Sand & Gravel Project (the Project) is located on tidewater, west of the city of Port
McNeill, British Columbia. The Company plans to quarry and screen the sand and gravel resource
to produce construction aggregates products on site. Products will be shipped in bulk carriers to
coastal urban markets in California.

In August 2002, the Company entered into a joint venture with the Kwakiutl First Nation
(Kwakiutl) to explore for viable sand and gravel deposits within their traditional territory, located
on northern Vancouver Island, British Columbia. In April 2003, the Company executed a similar
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Due to the uncertainty regarding recoverability, the Company has not recognized interest
receivable. The fair value of this amount receivable cannot be determined by the Company as it
is dependent on the future success of the Orca Quarry.

b) Eagle Rock Quarry

The Eagle Rock Quarry is located on deep tidewater in the Alberni Inlet, southwest of the city of
Port Alberni, British Columbia. The Company expects to quarry, crush and screen the granite
resource to produce construction aggregates products on site. Products are expected to be
shipped in bulk carriers to coastal urban markets in California

In April 2001, the Company staked mineral claims over the area of interest, and made
applications for land and foreshore tenure to the Province of British Columbia and the Port Alberni
Port Authority. The environmental assessment certificate and mine permit for the Eagle Rock
Quarry were issued in September 2003, and the 50-year lease with the Province of British
Columbia was executed in March 2005. A foreshore lease application for the ship loader has been
approved in principle, and the terms are currently being negotiated.

On October 1, 2002, Eagle Rock Materials Ltd. (ERM) acquired 100% of the Company's interest in
the project. ERM was formed for the purpose of holding the interests of the Company and certain
First Nations in the project. The Company owns 70% of ERM, the Hupacasath First Nation
(Hupacasath) and the Ucluelet First Nation (Ucluelet) each own 10%, and the remaining 10% is
held in trust by the Company for the Tseshaht First Nation. The Company, the Hupacasath and the
Ucluelet executed a shareholders' agreement and an impact and benefits agreement. The
principal terms of those agreements are as follows:

· Prior to a construction decision, the Company will fund ERM by making capital contributions to
ERM, on behalf of all the shareholders

· In the event that the Tseshaht do not choose to participate in ERM within a specific time after
the approval of a feasibility study, the other First Nations will have the right to equally
acquire the 10% interest held in trust for the Tseshaht.

· If First Nation shareholders elect not to make their equity contributions to the development
financing, the Company will acquire 30% of their interest in ERM in return for funding the 70%
balance of their equity contributions. If all three First Nations fail to make their equity
contributions, the Company will own 79% and the First Nations will own 21% of ERM.

· Any loans to the First Nations will bear interest at a rate closely tied to the internal rate of
return of the Eagle Rock Quarry development. The Company's sole recourse for repayment will
be to dividends receivable by the First Nations from ERM as the loans are repayable solely
from dividends.

· Certain preferential opportunities have been granted to the First Nations for business
development, employment, and training within their communities.

· In the event that treaties are settled over the Eagle Rock Quarry area, the First Nations have
agreed not to impose a tenure or tax regime on ERM, for a term of at least 25 years from the
date of such treaties, which is less favourable than the tenure and tax regime that would
have governed had the treaties not been settled.

· On the 25th anniversary of the development financing of the Eagle Rock Quarry, each First
Nation will have the one-time right to increase their ownership in ERM by 50%, by purchasing
ERM shares from the Company for cash at fair market value.
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in the Partnership by up to 50%, by purchasing Partnership units from the Company for cash at
fair market value.

In April 2003, the Company, on behalf of the joint venture, entered into an exploration agreement
with Western Forest Products Limited, now Western Forest Products Inc. (WFP), the owner of the
lands hosting the East and West Cluxewe deposits. Pursuant to the agreement, the Company and
WFP have executed and registered a profit a prendre agreement dated March 2005, which has the
following principal terms:

· The agreement has a term of ten years, with four 10-year extensions at the option of the
Company.

· The Company will make royalty payments at an agreed rate per tonne of construction
aggregates sold by the Company, subject to periodic inflationary adjustments and a minimum
royalty commencing in the fifth year of the term. 

In March 2004, the Company entered into an exploration agreement with Weyerhaeuser Company
Limited, now Island Timberlands Limited Partnership, the owner of the fee simple land hosting
the Bear Creek deposit. The exploration agreement gave the Company the exclusive right to
undertake exploration programs and negotiate a long term lease. The Company has completed its
exploration program and has earned the exclusive rights to negotiate the lease agreement by
June 2006.  The Company expects to complete the negotiations by the June 2006 deadline or
receive a further extension. 

In May 2004, the Company staked mineral claims over the entire Orca Project area. In July 2005,
the Company received from the provincial government the environmental assessment certificate
and the mine permit for the Orca Quarry and in October and November 2005 the Company
received the federal environmental approvals. In September 2005, the Company obtained a two
year provincial licence of occupation for the Orca Quarry ship loader, which gives the Company
the right to negotiate a long-term foreshore lease.  

In October 2005, the Company completed an independent technical report in compliance with
National Instrument 43-101 that confirmed the feasibility of the development of the East Cluxewe
deposit, including the associated ship loader, and the terminal and discharge facility in the Port of
Richmond, San Francisco Bay (the Richmond Terminal).  The report converted the Orca Quarry
resources to reserves.

Subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company completed the necessary
financing for the construction of the Orca Quarry and the Richmond Terminal, and made the
decision to commence construction (note 14).

Included in the value of the Orca Project at December 31, 2005, is an amount receivable from the
Namgis of $588,917 (2004 - $281,680). In April 2005, the Company and the Namgis entered into an
amended loan agreement, the principal terms of which are as follows:

· At the request of the Namgis, the Company will make additional advances to the Namgis to
enable them to make their required equity contributions to the Partnership.

· Advances made prior to a construction decision will bear interest at prime plus a small
margin. Advances made after a construction decision will bear substantially higher interest
rates, reflective of the equity nature of the funding.

· The Company's sole recourse for repayment is to the distributions receivable by the Namgis
from the Partnership. Advances made after a construction decision are repayable solely from
those distributions and cannot be prepaid.
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a) Common shares

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company issued 40,000 common shares for
proceeds of $36,000 upon the exercise of stock options.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company issued 2,500 common shares for
proceeds of $5,000 upon the exercise of stock options.

b) Broker warrants

Number Average
outstanding exercise price Expiry date

$

Issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2005 and 2004 250,000 5.00 2006

In connection with the special warrants offering (note 7), the agent received broker warrants
entitling it to acquire 250,000 common shares at an exercise price of $5.00 per common share for
a period of two years.  Since a deemed exercise event did not occur by February 27, 2005, each
broker warrant became exercisable into 1.1 common shares.  The broker warrants expired,
unexercised, on February 27, 2006.

c) Stock Options

The Company established an incentive stock option plan (the Plan) on April 23, 2002. The board of
directors (the Board) administers the Plan, whereby it may from time to time grant options up to a
total of 1,900,000 (2004 - 1,700,000) options to directors, senior officers, employees and
consultants. In September 2005, the Company amended the Plan to increase the exercise period of
options granted and to be granted from five years to 10 years. The Board determines the exercise
price of an option, but the price shall not be less than the fair market value of a common share on
the date it was granted. Vesting and other terms are at the discretion of the Board.

Number Average
outstanding exercise price Expiry date

$

At December 31, 2003 1,152,500 1.02 2011 - 2013

Granted 290,000 3.31 2014
Exercised (2,500) 2.00 2013
Cancelled (12,500) 2.20 2013

At December 31, 2004 1,427,500 1.47 2011 - 2014

Granted 192,500 4.10 2015
Exercised (40,000) 0.90 2012
Cancelled (17,500) 3.82 2014

At December 31, 2005 1,562,500 1.79 2011 - 2015
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c) Shipping and terminals

In September 2004, the Company entered into a long-term lease with Levin Enterprises, Inc. for
the Richmond Terminal. In May 2004, the Company received the planning permit for the Richmond
Terminal from the City of Richmond, and in February 2005 it received the environmental permit
from the Bay Conservation and Development Commission. In February 2006, the Company
executed the corresponding vessel berthing agreement for the Richmond Terminal.

The Company executed a long-term freight agreement in July 2005 for the delivery of products
from the ship loader at the Orca Quarry to third party barges at anchorage in San Francisco Bay,
the Richmond Terminal, and a third party terminal.

4 Other assets

2005 2004
$ $

Motor vehicle 8,000 8,000
Equipment and furniture 140,271 154,085

148,271 162,085
Less:  Accumulated amortization (92,303) (75,958)

55,968 86,127

5 Deferred financing costs

Legal, accounting, printing and other costs directly related to the Company's prospectus for its
initial public offering described in note 14 have been deferred.  These costs will be netted against
the gross proceeds of the financing upon closing.

6 Share capital

Authorized
Unlimited common shares without par value (2004 - 100,000,000)

Issued
2005 2004

Number of Number of
common common

shares Amount shares Amount
$ $

Balance - beginning of year 10,206,660 9,332,014 10,204,160 9,327,014
For cash 40,000 36,000 2,500 5,000
On exercise of special warrants (note 7) 2,750,000 9,261,691 - -

Balance - end of year 12,996,660 18,629,705 10,206,660 9,332,014
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In connection with the offering, the agent received broker warrants entitling it to acquire 250,000
common shares at an exercise price of $5.00 per common share for a period of two years (note
6(b)). A cash commission equal to 6.0% of the gross proceeds was also paid to the agent. 

8 Commitments

At December 31, 2005, the Company has the following minimum payments required under
operating leases:

$

2006 119,799
2007 66,958

In December 2005, the Company committed to purchase $800,000 of steel pipe in order to meet
the critical path for the construction of the Company's ship loader at the Orca Quarry.  

9 Income taxes

a) The recovery of income taxes shown in the consolidated statements of operations and deficit
differs from the amounts obtained by applying statutory rates to the loss before provision for
income taxes due to the following:

2005 2004

Statutory tax rate 34.86% 35.62%

Loss for the year (3,447,139) (2,786,135)

2005 2004
$ $

Provision for income taxes based on
statutory Canadian combined federal
and provincial income tax rates (1,201,673) (992,421)

Difference in foreign tax rates 488 5,481
Decrease in Canadian tax rates 145,811 98,329
Future tax benefit to the minority interest 129,515 108,462
Accounting charges having no tax basis 292,606 160,553
Tax assets for which an income tax benefit

has not been recognized 633,253 619,596

- -
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As at December 31, 2005, 1,537,500 options were exercisable at a weighted average exercise
price of $1.74.

The options have been valued using the following option pricing model assumptions:

2005 2004

Average risk free rate 3.11% - 4.12% 3.55%
Expected life 7 months - 10 years 5 years
Expected volatility 45% 45%
Expected dividends - -

As a consequence of amending the Plan in 2005, the Company recorded a further stock-based
compensation expense of $516,205 in recognition of the incremental fair value of the options
outstanding as of that date. The total stock-based compensation recorded in the year ended
December 31, 2005 was $817,534.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of
traded options. Option pricing models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including
expected life and expected volatility. Changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially
affect the fair value estimate and, therefore, the existing models do not necessarily provide a
reliable single measure of the fair value of the Company's stock options.

7 Special warrants

Number of 
special warrants Amount

$

Private placement 2,500,000 10,000,000
Issue costs - (738,309)

Balance - December 31, 2004 2,500,000 9,261,691
Deemed exercise December 22, 2005 (2,500,000) (9,261,691)

Balance - December 31, 2005 - -

On February 5, 2004, the Company made a private placement offering of 2,500,000 special
warrants at $4.00 per special warrant, which closed on February 27, 2004. Each special warrant
was exercisable, for no additional consideration, into one common share of the Company. The
special warrants would be deemed to be exercised if, by February 27, 2005, either a final
prospectus for an initial public offering was filed, which resulted in the Company receiving gross
proceeds of not less than $30 million, or if the Company closed a business transaction that
resulted in the holders of the special warrants being entitled, on exercise of the special warrants,
to freely tradeable securities or to cash. A deemed exercise event did not occur by February 27,
2005, which resulted in each special warrants being exercisable into 1.1 common shares. As a
result of the Company receiving a receipt for its final prospectus for an initial public offering on
December 22, 2005, the Company's special warrants were deemed to be exercised on behalf of
the holders for 2,750,000 common shares for no further consideration.
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12 Contingency

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company was served a petition made to the
Supreme Court of British Columbia by the Komoyue Heritage Society and others disputing the
issuance to the Company of its Environmental Assessment Certificate M05-01. The Company
believes that the petition is without merit, and the Company has taken action to protect its
interest in the status of Environmental Assessment Certificate M05-01.

13 Non cash investing and financing activities

As a result of the Company receiving a receipt for its final prospectus for an initial public offering
on December 22, 2005, the Company's 2,500,000 special warrants were deemed to be exercised
on behalf of the holders for 2,750,000 common shares for no further consideration.

14 Subsequent events

Subsequent to December 31, 2005, the Company:

a) completed an initial public offering of 16,628,185 common shares at $4.80 per share for gross
proceeds of $79,815,288.  A cash commission equal to 6.0% of the gross proceeds was paid to
the agent.  On January 10, 2006, the Company's shares were listed on the Toronto Stock
Exchange and commenced trading.

b) finalized an agreement for a US$47 million debt facility.  The facility comprised two Tranches, A
and B, for US$21 million and US$26 million respectively.  The loans are repayable on January 1,
2012, but may be prepaid at any time without penalty. The loans bear interest that increases
annually, commencing at 10% and 15% for Tranche A and Tranche B respectively in 2006, and
increasing to a maximum of 20% to 25% per annum respectively in 2011. Subsequent to the
first sale of a shipment of construction aggregates from the Orca Quarry, the Company must
elect either to grant 1,000,000 warrants or grant a royalty of US$0.21 per short ton on 88% of
construction aggregates shipments for the life of the quarry to the lenders as the Tranche A
fee. Similarly, with respect to the Tranche B fee, the Company must elect either to grant
1,153,846 warrants (reduced from 3,000,000 due the election of the Company subsequent to
December 31, 2005, to reduce the Tranche B facility from US$26 million to US$10 million) or
grant a royalty of US$0.03 per short ton on 88% of construction aggregates shipments for each
US$1 million of that facility.  Each Tranche A and B warrant is exercisable into one common
share at $4.80 per share until November 30, 2010. The Tranche A and B warrants and royalty
certificates have been issued and are being held in trust.  Draw downs under the facility may
be made at the discretion of the Company until December 31, 2006, and as of February 27,
2006, no funds had been drawn down. 

c) made the decision to commence construction of the Orca Quarry and the Richmond Terminal

d) entered into construction contracts totalling $29.4 million and made purchase commitments
of $4.4 million related to the Orca Quarry.
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b) The significant components of the Company's future tax asset, assuming a future tax 
rate of 34.12% (2004 - 35.62%), are as follows:

2005 2004
$ $

Future income tax assets
Excess of tax basis over carrying value of assets 1,786,527 (625,847)
Operating loss carry-forward 2,722,676 3,684,683

4,509,203 3,058,836
Valuation allowance for future tax assets (4,509,203) (3,058,836)

- -

c) The Company has Canadian non-capital loss carry-forwards of $5,624,000 (2004 - 
$9,745,000), and U.S. tax losses of $2,096,000 (2004 - $1,901,000) that may be available 
for tax purposes. The non-capital losses expire as follows:

Canada United States
$ $

2012 287,000
2013 1,033,000
2014 665,000
2015 3,639,000
2022 16,000
2023 781,000
2024 507,000
2025 792,000

10 Segmented financial information

The Company operates in one segment: the development and future operation of construction
aggregates properties and projects located in western North America.

11 Related party transactions

During the years ended December 31, 2005, certain directors, their family members and a
director of certain of the Company's subsidiaries, either directly or through companies controlled
by them, provided services to the Company, as follows:

a) Marketing services at a cost of $246,646 (2004 - $237,867).
b) Technical services at a cost of $16,910 (2004 - $20,263).
c) Clerical services at a cost of $4,549 (2004 - $6,612).

At December 31, 2005, accounts payable of $21,765 (2004 - $8,446) were outstanding, directly or
indirectly, with respect to certain directors and their family members, either directly or through
companies controlled by them.
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POLARIS MINERALS
CORPORATION
DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR OFFICERS

Marco A. Romero, President & Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Romero has over 26 years experience in the mining industry with senior roles in exploration,
mine development, mergers and acquisitions, environmental permitting, and business
management. Mr. Romero has been the President of Polaris Minerals Corporation since 2000. He
was the former Senior Vice President of Corporate Development of Ivanhoe Mines Ltd. from
February 1998 to June 2000 and co-founder and former Executive Director of Eldorado Gold
Corporation from 1991 to 1997.

Roman Shklanka, Chairman and Director
Dr. Shklanka is the Chairman and a Director of International Barytex Resources, Kobex Resources
Ltd., and is Vice-Chairman and Director of Pacific Imperial Mines Inc. He is an independent
consultant in mineral exploration. Dr. Shklanka was Chairman of Canico Resource Corp. from
February 2002 to December 2005. He was former Chairman and a major shareholder of Sutton
Resources Ltd. from 1995 to 1999 which was acquired by Barrick Gold Corporation in 1999. For
over 20 years, Dr. Shklanka has held various exploration and management positions with Placer
Dome Inc. including Vice President of Exploration.

R. Stuart (Tookie) Angus, Director
Mr. Angus was Managing Director – Mergers and Acquisitions with the merchant banking and
financial advisory firm Endeavour Financial Ltd. from November 2003 until November 2005 and
was responsible for merger and acquisition mandates. Prior to joining Endeavour, Mr. Angus was a
partner at the Canadian law firm Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP in its Business Department and
headed the firm’s Global Mining Group from February 2001 to October 2003 and was a partner
with the Canadian law firm Stikeman Elliot LLP from 1996 to 2001. For over 25 years, Mr. Angus
has focused on significant international exploration, development and mining ventures, and all
aspects of their structuring and finance.

Robert M. Edsel, Director
Mr. Edsel began his business career as an independent oil and gas producer in 1981 concentrating
on the acquisition and development of high-quality prospects in the Giddings Field, Texas. In May
1995, Mr. Edsel sold the assets of his privately held exploration firm, Gemini Exploration
Company, to Union Pacific Resources Company. In 2001, Mr. Edsel’s privately held investment
vehicle, Ago Investment Company, began actively pursing investment opportunities and, to date,
in addition to investments in oil and gas exploration, Agon has invested in privately held
companies involved in consumer finance, construction aggregates, art, and film distribution. Mr.
Edsel has been the Chief Executive Officer of Agon Investment Company since 1996.

Terrence A. Lyons, Director
Mr. Lyons has experience in natural resources, manufacturing, real estate, merchant banking and
corporate restructuring activities. Mr. Lyons is currently the Chairman of Northgate Minerals
Corporation (since 1993) and a director and officer of several public and private corporations
including a director and the Chairman of the audit committee of Canaccord Capital Inc. and a
director of B.C. Pacific Capital Corporation (since 1986). Mr. Lyons was formerly the President and
Managing Partner of B.C. Pacific Capital Corporation from 1998 to 2004, the Managing Partner of
Brascan Financial Corporation for 17 years, a past chairman of Versatile Pacific Shipyards Inc.,
Westmin Resources and Vice Chairman of Battle Mountain Gold. Mr. Lyon currently serves as the
Chairman of the Mining Association of British Columbia.

Gary D. Nordin, Director
Mr. Nordin has over 25 years experience in the mining industry. He is Vice President Exploration
of Portal Resources Ltd. (since 2003) and Cansil Resources Inc. (since 1999). Mr. Nordin is a
former director and co-founder of Eldorado Gold and Vice President Exploration of Eldorado Gold
from 1992 to 1997 and the former Chief Consulting Geologist of Eldorado Gold from 1997 to
2001. Mr. Nordin is a former director and Vice President Exploration of Bema Gold Corporation
from 1984 to 1992.

John H. Purkis, Director
Mr. Purkis has over 30 years experience in the mining industry covering all phases of the industry
from exploration to mine closure. He was the President and Chief Executive Officer of MCK Mining
Corp. from November 2003 to January 2006 and is the former Vice President Mining and
Development of Atna Resources Ltd. from May 2000 to December 2002, Project Manager of Genel
Dominicana from August 1996 to August 1999, Vice President Projects of Inmet Mining
Corporation from October 1993 to July 1996, Vice President Mining of Minnova Inc. from
November 1991 to October 1993, Chief Engineer of Cyprus Anvil Mining Corp. from 1979 to 1983.
Mr. Purkis is also a director of Petaquilla Minerals Ltd. (since July 2005).

David F. Singleton, Director
Mr. Singleton has been the President of Eagle Rock Aggregates Inc. since 2002. Mr. Singleton has
over 40 years experience in the industrial minerals sector. Mr. Singleton is currently the President
of Proconsult UK Ltd. (since 1990) and Mr. Singleton controls Proconsult. Mr. Singleton was the
past managing director of ARC Aggregates Limited from 1987 to 1989, a large aggregates producer
in Europe, which was acquired by Hanson Plc in 1989. Mr. Singleton was involved in the creation
in 1982 of BACMI (British Aggregates Construction Materials Industries) and Acted as Chairman of
the Economic and Public Affairs Committee from 1984 to 1987. Mr. Singleton formed Global Stone
Corporation, a lime and limestone company, and took the company public on the Toronto Stock
Exchange in 1993. Mr. Singleton was the past President and Chief Executive Officer of Global Clay
Products LLC from 1999 to 2001, a company in the North American clay brick industry. He was
also the former International Director of the National Stone Association from 1994 to 1998.

Paul B. Sweeney, Director
Mr. Sweeney is a financial executive with over 30 years experience n the mining industry. He was
the Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Canico Resources Corp. from 2002 to December
2005, and former Chief Financial Officer of Manhattan Minerals Corp. from 1999 to 2001, Sutton
Resources Ltd. from 1998 to 1999, Princeton Mining Corporation from 1997 to 1998, and
Gibraltar Mines Limited from 1993 to 1996. Mr. Sweeney has over 20 years of finance experience
with Placer Dome Inc. and is a director of a number of mineral resource companies.

Harry P. Sutherland, Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Sutherland has over 30 years experience in senior financial responsibilities in the mining
industry. He has been Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer for Polaris Minerals
Corporation since 2000. He was the past Chief Financial Officer of Manhattan Minerals Corp. from
1996 to 1999, Chief Financial Officer of Eldorado Gold from 1995 to 1996, Manager of Finance of
Hudson Bay Mining and Smelting Ltd. from 1993 to 1995, and Chief Financial Officer of Imperial
Metals Corporation from 1984 to 1992. Mr. Sutherland held various finance and management
positions with Gold Fields of South Africa Ltd. from 1971 to 1982.

Herbert G.A. Wilson, Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
Mr. Wilson has over 30 years of experience in the development and operation of construction
materials and industrial minerals operations. Mr. Wilson was a founder, director, Executive Vice
President, and Chief Operating Officer of Global Stone Corporation from 1992 to 1998, a Toronto-
listed public company producing construction aggregates and lime products. Mr. Wilson is the past
President of United States Lime & Minerals Inc. from 1999 to 2000 producing lime products and
construction materials from limestone quarries located in the south-central states.

With the exception of David Singleton and Robert Edsel, who reside in the United States, the
directors and management are based in Vancouver, BC. Mr. Singleton is an executive director who
leads Polaris’ USA office in Roswell, Georgia, and is principally focused on the shipping and
marketing of Polaris’ aggregates to the United Sates. Mr. Edsel is a non-executive director and
resides in Dallas, Texas.
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